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August 26, 2010 
 
To:       The Honorable Larry Hanson, Mayor; and 

Members of the Village Board of Trustees 
 

From:   Vern Burdick, Chairmen  
Combined Planning and Zoning Commission  

 
RE:  PZB10-03 Taco Bell Sign Variance Finding of Fact: Lot 4 of Antioch Venture Being a Resubdivision 
of Part of Lot 137 in County Clerk’s Plat of Unsubdivided Lands in the Northwest Quarter of Section 17, 
Township 46 North, Range 10 East of the Third Principal Meridian as recorded on Document No 2722207, 
Dated September 16, 1988 in Lake County, Illinois.;   PZB 10-03; 
 
 
The Combined Planning Commission and Zoning Board conducted a public hearing on April 08, 2010 and 
August 12, 2010 following notification as required by State Law and Village Ordinances to consider a Sign 
Variance Request pursuant to Title 10 of the Village Code.     
 
As part of the proposed reconstruction of the Antioch Taco Bell/Pizza Hut, the applicant NJB Operations has 
requested a sign variance be granted from the Village Code to allow for the installation of additional wall 
signs, logos on directional signage, and a height variance for the ground sign. Initial construction drawings for 
the building were submitted during the redrafting of the code, and the applicant was notified of the 
forthcoming revisions.    
 
Warren Johnson Architects, representing NJB Operations presented to project and redevelopment proposal, 
which comprised of the complete construction and rebranding of the Taco Bell/Pizza Hut.  The proposal 
requested the use of three wall signs, three canopy signs, one blade sign, and a freestanding sign.  
   
Dustin Nilsen, Director of Community presented his report. He summarized the standards for a zoning 
variance approval listed under Title 10, Chapter 14, Section 6 of the Village Code, reported the history of the 
project and the comparison of the standards allowed by the past sign code and the current.  This was of 
particular relevance to this case due to the fact that the project design and construction were in process as 
the code was being reconstructed.   Based on the code revision, the applicant was afforded a greater 
opportunity to utilize additional wall signage, but less area for its ground sign.  In short he did not recommend 
approval of the variance.   
 
After a continuation of the project, the applicant provided amended drawings based on Planning and Zoning 
Board comments on May 10th, 2010.  After a review of the drawings, the Planning and Zoning Board 
recommended that the additional wall signage be allowed but that the monument sign variance be denied.   
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Findings 
Based upon the facts presented in the case the Planning and Zoning Board finds the following: 
 
The applicant has two unique users, in brand and function, therefore the additional signage meets a need to 
distinguish the two users, even if they fall under common ownership.  This is a unique circumstance that 
generally does not apply to users of similar use and location. Therefore the additional wall signage is justified. 
 
In regards to the monument signage the applicant does not meet a number of the key standards listed above; 
and therefore the Planning and Zoning Board cannot make a positive recommendation regarding the 
variance with the following findings.   
 
1).There does not appear to be a demonstrated practical design difficulty (Standard (a) iv)); 
There are a number of similarly situated commercial lots along Illinois 173, all having similar setback and 
landscaping requirements.  At this time no users have been granted or justified a height variance regarding 
the height of monument signage.   
 
3).The strict application of the regulation will not deny the applicant a reasonable use of the land (Standard 
(e)).   
The applicant has been issued permits to construct the restaurant and is allowed ample wall signage and a 
monument sign. 
 
With those findings the Planning and Zoning Board unanimously recommends that the wall signage package 
be approved and the ground signage including the directional logos and monument variance be denied. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

 
Vernon Burdick, Chairman  
Combined Planning Commission and Zoning Board  
 
 




